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FOREWORD FROM ATTORNEY GENERAL CURTIS T. HILL, JR.

As Indiana’s 43rd Attorney General, my goal is to protect the safety and welfare of Hoosiers, and
few matters are more important to me than preserving the dignity of human life. The troubling
discovery of 2,411 fetal remains from Indiana abortion clinics was a shock to our state and our
nation alike, and my office is proud to lead the investigation of this horrific situation to bring
answers and closure to all those impacted. This case exemplifies the need for strong laws to ensure
the dignified disposition of fetal remains, like those passed by the Indiana General Assembly in
2016 and upheld by the U.S. Supreme Court in 2019. I am extremely humbled by the fact that my
office was able to provide for a dignified burial of these remains in accordance with Indiana law
so that they could finally rest in peace. The purpose of this final report is to communicate our
findings and to provide greatly needed closure to all those affected by this tragedy.
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
In September 2019, the Office of the Indiana Attorney General (“OAG”) was notified by
Will County, Illinois, authorities of the discovery of 2,246 medically preserved fetal remains and
thousands of abandoned patient health records in the garage of deceased Dr. Ulrich Klopfer, a
physician previously licensed by the State of Indiana. Dr. Klopfer performed tens of thousands of
abortions at his clinics in South Bend, Fort Wayne, and Gary, Indiana, and his career ended
following the Indiana Medical Licensing Board’s permanent revocation of his medical license in
2016 for poor record keeping, failure to provide appropriate anesthesia to patients, and performing
abortions on thirteen year old patients without proper reporting to the state.
An initial investigation determined that the 2,246 fetal remains all appeared to be from
2000-2002 and had originated from Dr. Klopfer’s Indiana abortion clinics, as Dr. Klopfer was only
practicing in Indiana at that time. Additional searches of Dr. Klopfer’s properties and clinics led
to the discovery of an additional 165 medically preserved fetal remains in the trunk of one of his
vehicles and thousands more health records. Because of the OAG’s statutory authority over
abandoned health records, the 2,411 fetal remains and health records were transferred from Will
County, Illinois, to secure facilities in Indiana. Upon further investigation by the OAG, it was
determined that the remains appear to be from Dr. Klopfer’s medical practice in Indiana from the
years 2000-2003.
The OAG’s investigation has revealed that Dr. Klopfer failed to make arrangements for the
appropriate disposition of patient health records or notify his patients regarding their records from
his closed medical practice.

The OAG has reviewed, processed, and indexed the records

abandoned by Dr. Klopfer and will maintain and safeguard the health and patient records required
to be retained by law until such a time as they can be disposed of properly.
The OAG investigation has also revealed that Dr. Klopfer failed to effectuate the proper
disposition of the fetal remains as required by Indiana law. Based on the poor condition of the
fetal remains and the state and unreliable nature of the accompanying records, it was not possible
to make an independent verification of the identities of the individual fetal remains. Accordingly,
the Attorney General provided for all 2,411 fetal remains to be interred in a respectful and dignified
manner in accordance with state law. The OAG’s investigation into this matter has concluded and
the following is a final report of its findings.
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I. INTRODUCTION
Dr. Ulrich Klopfer was an osteopathic physician licensed by the State of Indiana in 1979.
Prior to his medical license being suspended indefinitely in 2016, Dr. Klopfer practiced at and was
the medical director for women’s health clinics in South Bend, Fort Wayne, and Gary, Indiana.
Dr. Klopfer performed a variety of obstetric and gynecological services, but his practice was
primarily focused on surgical and medical abortions. Dr. Klopfer performed tens of thousands of
abortions over the course of more than three decades.
Dr. Klopfer died on September 3, 2019. After his death, Dr. Klopfer’s family discovered
medically preserved fetal remains in the garage next to his family home. Through their family
attorney, local law enforcement was notified and dispatched to search the premises, and they
discovered over 2,200 fetal remains and thousands of health records from Dr. Klopfer’s medical
practice. This discovery led to the search of multiple properties identified as owned or rented by
Dr. Klopfer and his related businesses. Additional fetal remains and health records were also
found in the trunk of a car belonging to Dr. Klopfer. Hundreds of thousands of health records
from Dr. Klopfer’s medical practice were found abandoned in the former clinic locations, storage
units, and another garage.
Under specific statutory authority, the Office of the Indiana Attorney General (“OAG”)
initiated an investigation and took possession of the abandoned health records from Dr. Klopfer’s
medical practice. The OAG transferred the health records to a secure location where they could
be maintained in such a manner that the privacy of the patients and the confidentiality of the
information would be preserved. The fetal remains were determined to be from Indiana and were
transferred from the custody of the Will County (Illinois) Sheriff to the St. Joseph County (Indiana)
Coroner. The Attorney General provided for all 2,411 fetal remains to be interred in a respectful
and dignified manner and the OAG will maintain and safeguard the health and other records
3

containing personal information in its possession from Dr. Klopfer’s medical practice until such a
time as they can be disposed of pursuant to Indiana law.
II. THE ATTORNEY GENERAL’S AUTHORITY
The OAG initiated its investigation pursuant to Indiana Code § 4-6-14, et seq., which
outlines the OAG’s role in handling abandoned records and provides for the protection of health
records and identifying information. The Attorney General has specific statutory authority to take
possession of, store, maintain, transfer, protect, and/or destroy abandoned health records and other
records that contain personal information under Indiana Code § 4-6-14-5. As contemplated by
Indiana Code § 4-6-14-5 and defined by Indiana Code § 4-6-14-2.5, “health records” are “written,
electronic, or printed information possessed or maintained by a health care provider concerning
any diagnosis, treatment, or prognosis of the patient, including health information that is possessed
or maintained on microfiche, microfilm, or in a digital format”.
The term “health records” also includes mental health records, alcohol and drug abuse
records, and information required to remain private under the federal Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act (“HIPAA”). See Indiana Code § 4-6-14-2.5. The Attorney General’s
authority to enforce HIPAA comes from the Social Security Act. See 42 USC § 17939(e). Under
HIPAA, any of the following types of information would constitute protected health information
if possessed or maintained by a health care provider:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.
h.
i.
j.

Names;
Dates, except year;
Telephone numbers;
Geographic data;
FAX numbers;
Social Security numbers;
Email addresses;
Medical record numbers;
Account numbers;
Health plan beneficiary numbers;
4

k. Certificate/license numbers;
l. Vehicle identifiers and serial numbers including license plates;
m. Web URLs;
n. Device identifiers and serial numbers;
o. Internet protocol addresses;
p. Full face photos and comparable images;
q. Biometric identifiers (i.e. retinal scan, fingerprints);
r. Any unique identifying number or code.
See 45 CFR § 160.103, 45 CFR § 164.514.
“Personal Information” as utilized in Indiana Code § 24-4.9-2-10 includes:
(1) a Social Security number that is not encrypted or redacted; or
(2) an individual's first and last names, or first initial and last name, and one (1) or more
of the following data elements that are not encrypted or redacted:
(A) A driver's license number.
(B) A state identification card number.
(C) A credit card number.
(D) A financial account number or debit card number in combination with a security
code, password, or access code that would permit access to the person's account.
A “health care provider” includes any “person listed in Indiana Code § 16-39-7-1(a)(1) through
(11), or a person licensed, certified, registered, or regulated by an entity described in Indiana Code
§ 25-0.5-11”. See Indiana Code § 4-6-14-2.
Health records and other records that contain personal information are deemed abandoned
when they are either “(1) voluntarily surrendered, relinquished, or disclaimed by the health care
provider or regulated professional, with no intention of reclaiming or regaining possession; or (2)
recklessly or negligently treated, such that an unauthorized person could obtain access or
possession”. See Indiana Code § 4-6-14-1. Prior to the Attorney General utilizing his or her power
to take possession of, store, maintain, transfer, protect, or destroy abandoned health records and
other records that contain personal information, the Attorney General must make a determination
as to whether a health care provider or other regulated professional has abandoned said records.
See Indiana Code § 4-6-14-6. Once abandoned records are obtained by the OAG, they are
maintained in a secure access facility that is not accessible to the public. The records are
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maintained for the period of time mandated by state law, which varies by the record type and age.
Id.
III. FACTUAL BACKGROUND
Dr. Ulrich G. Klopfer was a licensed Doctor of Osteopathy, holding Indiana license number
02000628A, issued January 12, 1979. Dr. Klopfer practiced at, and was medical director for, three
different locations in Indiana: Women’s Pavilion Clinic, located at 2010 Ironwood Circle, South
Bend, Indiana 46635; Fort Wayne Women’s Health Organization, located at 2210 Inwood Drive,
Fort Wayne, Indiana 46815; and Friendship Family Planning Clinic of Indiana, located at 3700
Broadway, Gary, Indiana 46408. At these three clinic locations, Dr. Klopfer provided general
gynecological care, surgical and medical abortions, and vasectomies.
A. CRIMINAL ACTIONS
On or about January 3, 2014, Dr. Klopfer was criminally charged in the Lake County
Superior Court under Cause No. 45D07-1401-CM-0018, for failing to timely file a public
Termination of Pregnancy Report, a Class B Misdemeanor, regarding a thirteen year old patient.
This report is to be filed under Indiana Code § 16-34-2-5(b), which required that abortions
performed on patients less than fourteen years of age be reported to the Indiana State Department
of Health (“ISDH”) and the Indiana Department of Child Services (“IDCS”) within three days
after the abortion is performed. See Exhibit A attached hereto. Dr. Klopfer entered into a pretrial
diversion agreement on the Lake County case in July 2015 wherein he received a deferred
prosecution of the Class B Misdemeanor in exchange for its dismissal at the end of a one year
period. See Exhibit B attached hereto.
Similarly, on or about June 27, 2014, Dr. Klopfer was criminally charged in the St. Joseph
Superior Court under Cause No. 71D04-1406-CM-002439, for failing to timely file a public
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Termination of Pregnancy Report, a Class B Misdemeanor, regarding a thirteen year old patient.
This report is to be filed under Indiana Code § 16-34-2-5(b), which required that abortions
performed on patients less than fourteen years of age be reported to the ISDH and the IDCS within
three days after the abortion is performed. See Exhibit C attached hereto. Dr. Klopfer entered
into a pretrial diversion agreement on the St. Joseph County case in December 2014 wherein he
received a deferred prosecution of the Class B Misdemeanor in exchange for its dismissal at the
end of a one year period. See Exhibit D attached hereto.
B. INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH LICENSING ACTIONS
On or about January 28, 2015, the ISDH filed a licensing action against Dr. Klopfer’s
Women’s Pavilion Clinic in South Bend as the result of a series of surveys it had conducted at the
Women’s Pavilion Clinic location finding significant disrepair, violations of state law, and erratic
record keeping. On June 26, 2015, the ISDH filed a second licensing action in reference to the
deteriorating conditions at the Women’s Pavilion Clinic location. Specifically, the ISDH alleged
that various surveys, patient record review, and personnel file review had revealed multiple
violations of Indiana law including: (1) a failure to have qualified medical personnel to monitor
patients who were given sedation medications prior to or during an abortion procedure; (2) a failure
to provide the requisite information and counseling to patients as required by Indiana law; and (3)
a failure to timely report abortions performed on underage patients. Dr. Klopfer entered into a
settlement agreement with the ISDH in November 2015 wherein he agreed not to seek current
licensure for the Women’s Pavilion Clinic location for ninety (90) days in exchange for the
dismissal with prejudice of the two ISDH actions. Dr. Klopfer closed the other two clinic locations
voluntarily prior to entering into his settlement agreement with the ISDH.
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C. MEDICAL LICENSING BOARD ACTIONS
As a practicing physician in the State of Indiana, Dr. Klopfer was licensed and subject to
regulation by the Medical Licensing Board of Indiana (“Board”). On January 11, 2016, the Board
filed an amended administrative complaint against the medical license of Ulrich G. Klopfer
“pursuant to Ind. Code § 25-1-7-7, Ind. Code § 25-1-5-3, Ind. Code art. 25-22.5, the Administrative
Orders and Procedures Act, Ind. Code ch. 4-21.5-3, and Ind. Code ch. 25-1-9”. Cause No. 2014
MLB 0044. See Exhibit E attached hereto. Dr. Ulrich continued to perform both medical and
surgical abortions at one or more of his clinics through November 2015.
After a hearing conducted on August 25, 2016, the Board entered its Findings of Fact,
Ultimate Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Final Order on November 22, 2016,
suspending Dr. Klopfer’s medical license indefinitely, finding that:
a. Dr. Klopfer had violated Indiana Code § 25-1-9-4(a)(4)(B) in that he had failed to keep
abreast of current professional theory and practice in that he failed to ensure that qualified
staff were present when patients received and/or recovered from Lidocaine and Stadol
medications given prior to and during abortion procedures.
b. Dr. Klopfer had violated Indiana Code § 25-1-9-4(a)(4)(B) in that he had failed to keep
abreast of current professional theory and practice in that he had failed to document in
patients’ medical records that information and counseling was provided to patients at least
eighteen hours prior to a surgical abortion procedure being performed.
c. Dr. Klopfer had violated Indiana Code § 25-1-9-4(a)(4)(B) in that he had failed to keep
abreast of current professional theory and practice in that he had failed to document in
patients’ medical records that information and counseling was provided to patients at least
eighteen hours prior to a medical abortion procedure being performed.
d. Dr. Klopfer had violated Indiana Code § 25-1-9-4(a)(3) in that he knowingly violated a
state statute or rule regulating the medical profession. Specifically, Dr. Klopfer was found
to have violated Indiana Code § 16-34-2-5(b), when he failed to submit a Termination of
Pregnancy Report within three days after performing an abortion on at least two thirteen
year old patients.
e. Dr. Klopfer had violated Indiana Code § 25-1-9-4(a)(4)(A) due to professional
incompetence as he continued to engage in a pattern of conduct which demonstrated an
inability to exercise reasonable care, as defined in 844 IAC 5-2-5, in providing abortion
8

services, as is normally exercised by practitioners in the same or similar circumstances.
See Exhibit F attached hereto.
Following the suspension of his medical license, Dr. Klopfer closed the Women’s Pavilion
Clinic in South Bend.
IV. INVESTIGATIVE FINDINGS
Physicians are subject to certain state and federal regulations which govern patient records
and/or health records. The OAG’s investigation has revealed that despite having his license
suspended indefinitely and closing all three clinics, it appears that Dr. Klopfer failed to: (1) make
arrangements for the transfer of the patient records and/or health records related to his medical
practice in Indiana (See 844 IAC 7-1-4); (2) failed to notify all active patients in writing and
provide patients with the mechanism to request their records (See 844 IAC 5-2-16); (3) failed to
make appropriate arrangements for custodianship of the health records from his practice or to
assure continued access or any mechanism to ensure the ability of a patient to supplement or amend
said records (See 844 IAC 5-3-8 and 844 IAC 5-3-6); and (4) failed to name an authorized proxy
or contact person and failed to establish appropriate administrative, technical and physical
safeguards to protect the privacy of protected health information were he to become unable to do
so (See 45 CFR §164.530(c)(1), Indiana Code §§ 34-43-1-1, et seq., 16-41-8-1, et seq.). Dr.
Klopfer also failed to effectuate the proper disposition of the fetal remains in his possession under
Indiana law. Accordingly, the OAG asserts that Dr. Klopfer failed in many respects to meet his
obligations under both state and federal law which will be further explained below.
A. THE INITIAL DISCOVERY OF FETAL REMAINS
Dr. Klopfer died of natural causes on September 3, 2019, at the age of 79 in his home in
unincorporated Crete Township in Will County, Illinois. On the afternoon of September 12, 2019,
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the Will County Coroner’s Office received a telephone call from an attorney representing Dr.
Klopfer’s family. The attorney informed the Coroner’s Office that while going through the
doctor’s personal property, they discovered what they believed to be fetal remains in the garage of
the family home and requested that the Will County Coroner’s Office provide proper removal.
The Will County Coroner’s Office contacted the Will County State’s Attorney’s Office and the
Will County Sheriff’s Office regarding the situation.
Will County Sheriff’s detectives, crime scene investigators, and representatives from the
Will County Coroner’s Office were then dispatched to the Klopfer family home. Upon their
arrival, they were directed to a garage on the property. Upon conducting a thorough search of the
property over the course of two days, utilizing nearly the full resources of the Will County Sheriff’s
Department, 2,246 medically preserved fetal remains were found among boxes of personal items,
rusting cars, multitudes of soda cans, and other random garbage stacked high to the ceiling in Dr.
Klopfer’s garage. The Will County Coroner’s Office took possession of the 2,246 remains found
on the Klopfer family property at the conclusion of the search.
The fetal remains were in various states of decay. The remains were mostly found inside
molding boxes and old Styrofoam coolers containing large red medical waste bags. It appeared as
though each remain had been placed in a small clear plastic specimen bag for purposes of being
medically preserved in a chemical suspected to be formalin, a formaldehyde derivative. However,
many of the bags had degraded over time and/or suffered damage, resulting in leakage from the
individual bags into the outer bag, box, or cooler.
Various personal health information was written on the front of the individual bags in black
marker. The information displayed on the bags in certain instances included a patient chart
number, date, and/or initials of the patient. However, the personal health information written on
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the individual bags varied greatly, and some of the information written on the individual bags was
missing, contained errors, or had eroded over time due to the formalin leakage.
The Will County Sheriff’s Department also found health records in conjunction with the
remains. The health records were found in Dr. Klopfer’s garage inside or near the boxes and
coolers that housed the fetal remains. These health records consisted of one page forms, filled in
partially by hand, that contained personal health information such as patient name, patient chart
number, date of birth, and social security number.
However, like the personal health information written on the individual bags of fetal
remains, the personal health information contained in the records varied greatly, with many fields
left blank and displaying many apparent errors or improbable entries. For example, many health
records were missing entries for particular fields, such as name, date of birth, or social security
number. Other forms had partial entries for some fields, such as only month and day being listed
for date of birth or only a partial social security number. In some instances, the patient was
identified by age, meaning there was no name, social security number, or chart number listed on
the individual record. In other instances, it was clear that entries had been made in error. For
example, on some records, the form date and date of birth were listed as the same date, and on
other records, the patient date of birth was listed as only two years before the form date, both of
which would be scientifically impossible. Additionally, some health records contained chart
numbers that correlated to more than one patient name.
A majority of the health records found with the remains were dated and appeared to all be
from the years 2000, 2001, 2002, and 2003, when Dr. Klopfer was only practicing medicine and
performing abortions at his three clinics in Indiana. The Will County Sheriff’s Office took custody
of the records found with the remains following their collection from the family property. The
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investigation conducted by the Will County Sheriff’s Department revealed no evidence that Dr.
Klopfer had performed any surgical procedures or medical services on the family property in
Illinois. Rather, all evidence suggested that the remains and health records that were discovered
originated from Dr. Klopfer’s medical practice in Indiana.
While investigating the initial 2,246 fetal remains discovered on the Klopfer family
property, the Will County Sheriff’s Office was made aware of additional properties either owned
or rented by Dr. Klopfer. Specifically, the Will County Sheriff’s Office was made aware that
numerous vehicles and possibly other property owned by Dr. Klopfer were being stored in an
outdoor gated lot of a business located in Dolton, Illinois. The Will County Sheriff’s Office made
contact with the business owner to ascertain what type of property was stored in the lot.
The information received by Will County detectives indicated that the only property stored
on this lot consisted of eight vehicles, and the vehicles had been stored at that location for over six
years. There was no indication that additional personal property was either stored or visible inside
of the vehicles that would have contained additional fetal remains. Arrangements were then made
between the property owner, the Klopfer family, and the Will County Sheriff’s Office to conduct
a thorough search of the vehicles once the Klopfer family located the keys.
Following this initial discovery in early September 2019, the OAG initiated its
investigation regarding the fetal remains and health records that had been found in Will County,
Illinois, as they were products of Dr. Klopfer’s medical practice in the State of Indiana. On
October 2, 2019, the initial 2,246 fetal remains and health records found in Dr. Klopfer’s garage
were transferred from Will County to the custody of the St. Joseph County Coroner’s Office in
Indiana pursuant to an arrangement with the OAG.
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B. ADDITIONAL PROPERTIES IDENTIFIED
Following the discovery of the fetal remains, the OAG determined that additional
properties either owned or rented by Dr. Klopfer, or one of his associated businesses, were located
in Indiana. These properties included three clinic locations, adjacent properties, a vacant lot, and
multiple storage units and vehicles. It was suspected that additional fetal remains may be located
on these properties, and it was known that Dr. Klopfer kept health records at these properties.
Upon further investigation, it was determined that the Fort Wayne Women’s Health
Organization, located at 2210 Inwood Drive, Fort Wayne, Indiana 46815, and Friendship Family
Planning Clinic of Indiana, located at 3700 Broadway, Gary, Indiana 46408, were owned by an
Illinois Limited Liability Company named UG Klopfer Real Estate Holdings LLC, belonging to
Dr. Klopfer. UG Klopfer Real Estate Holdings LLC was administratively dissolved in Indiana on
October 19, 2010. UG Klopfer Real Estate Holdings LLC was involuntarily dissolved in Illinois
on August 12, 2016. The Women’s Pavilion Clinic, located at 2010 Ironwood Circle, South Bend,
Indiana 46635, was owned by Dr. Klopfer individually. The OAG’s investigation also found that
Dr. Klopfer maintained three storage units at Public Storage in Hobart, Indiana, at 4001 W. 37th
Ave. Hobart, Indiana 46342.
After the clinics closed, all three fell further and further into disrepair. In an interview
provided to The Daily Caller News Foundation (“DCNF”), filmmaker Mark Archer described an
interview he did of Dr. Klopfer in his Fort Wayne clinic on October 18, 2018. Dr. Klopfer told
Mr. Archer that he went to the Fort Wayne clinic every Wednesday night to “check on his
property.” Archer described the office as “filthy dirty full of clutter,” and told DCNF that “I think
he’s a hoarder. . .

I am fearful of what they’re going to find in the clinics.”

See

https://dailycaller.com/2019/09/17/abortion-doctor-fetal-remains/. What was found in the OAG’s
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investigation confirmed those fears.
1. THE FORT WAYNE CLINIC
On September 19, 2019, the Fort Wayne Police Department executed a search warrant
obtained through the Allen County Superior Court on Dr. Klopfer’s Fort Wayne clinic, the
Women’s Health Organization located at 2210 Inwood Drive. Officers from the Fort Wayne
Police Department were the first to enter the clinic. They cleared the building for safety, and then
Fort Wayne crime scene investigators walked through and documented the disorderly condition of
the clinic.
The Fort Wayne clinic has a ground level and a basement. The ground level was extremely
cluttered. Boxes, garbage, cleaning supplies, clothing, unopened food and drinks, magazines, and
other miscellaneous personal items were strewn about. Directly off the waiting room, there was
an office that appeared to be Dr. Klopfer’s. It contained multiple filing cabinets which contained
health records along with other miscellaneous documents and office supplies. These filing
cabinets were not secured or locked.
The basement level of the clinic appeared to be used mainly for storage and was in very
poor condition. It was apparent that it had flooded previously, as there were distinct indicators of
water damage throughout the basement, extremely prevalent mold, and a strong musty odor. Many
health records were discovered in the basement, completely unsecured and wrapped in trash bags.
When entering the basement from the main entrance stairway, Dr. Klopfer had a bedroom
immediately to the right of the stairs. This bedroom contained a bed and numerous boxes with
various personal items, including gifts, magazines, clothes, and food. Also in the basement, there
were several storage rooms that contained more than 100 boxes of health records dating back to
the 1980s and some employee records intermingled with garbage, personal items, and medical
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supplies. Many of the boxes housing the health records were in extremely poor condition due to
water damage. Some boxes fell apart as soon as they were moved, and many records were so
severely damaged that they were unreadable. Another basement storage room contained a number
of unlocked filing cabinets containing health records, employee records, and various other items,
which could have been easily accessed by anyone entering the clinic.
With the consent of Dr. Klopfer’s family, all health records were removed from the Fort
Wayne clinic by the OAG with the assistance of the Fort Wayne Police Department, a task that
required significant man power and a twenty-six foot moving truck. The health records recovered
from the Fort Wayne clinic were then taken to a secure access facility utilized by the State of
Indiana for record storage. The facility is not accessible to the public.
2. THE SOUTH BEND CLINIC
Dr. Klopfer’s South Bend clinic, the Women’s Pavilion Clinic, located at 2010 Ironwood
Circle, as well as a vacant lot owned by Dr. Klopfer near the clinic, were also searched on
September 19, 2019, pursuant to a search warrant obtained by the St. Joseph County Prosecutor’s
Office. Law enforcement officers for the St. Joseph County Prosecutor’s Office were the first to
enter the clinic and secure it for safety. Upon entering the clinic, it was apparent that unsecured
health records were strewn about the waiting area and throughout the facility. The clinic is a one
floor free standing building consisting of a main lobby and waiting area, multiple exam rooms, a
large recovery room, multiple bathrooms, and various large storage areas.
The entire clinic was extremely cluttered. Boxes, garbage, and debris were stacked from
floor to the ceiling in each room, and the building was in complete disarray. Health records were
intermingled with boxes upon boxes of miscellaneous items including car parts, rotting food,
unsterilized used medical instruments, hundreds of empty soda cans and protein shake bottles,
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various personal items, and medical supplies – including loose syringes. Some of the health
records were soaking in an unidentified liquid and were covered in mold.
With the exception of one filing cabinet that contained mostly narcotics, presumably used
in Dr. Klopfer’s medical practice, none of the filing cabinets were locked or secured in any manner.
The keys to that filing cabinet were located on the front desk in the clinic waiting area. Therefore,
the records were unsecured and easily accessible to anyone, authorized or not, who gained entry
to the clinic. With the consent of Dr. Klopfer’s family, all health records found were removed
from the South Bend clinic by the OAG over a two day period, utilizing significant man power
and two twenty-six foot moving trucks. The health records recovered from the South Bend clinic
were then taken to a secure access facility utilized by the State of Indiana for record storage. The
facility is not accessible to the public.
3. THE GARY CLINIC
Dr. Klopfer’s Gary clinic, the Friendship and Family Planning Clinic of Indiana, located at
3711 Washington Street, an adjacent property with a garage, and multiple storage units in the area
were also searched on September 19, 2019, by the Hobart Police Department in conjunction with
the OAG upon the consent and cooperation of the Klopfer family. The Klopfer family was present
while these properties were searched.
The clinic location in Gary was extremely cluttered. There were hundreds of empty protein
shake bottles littering nearly every room on the main level. There were boxes of miscellaneous
items including old shoes, old phone books, medical equipment, decorations, magazines, clothes,
and old typewriters, stacked wall-to-wall and floor–to-ceiling in the two rooms on the north part
of the building. The basement had suffered severe water damage and was infested by rodents.
The large main area of the Gary clinic had garbage and boxes strewn throughout. The
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rooms on the south part of the building were filled with old electronics equipment and numerous
boxes of miscellaneous personal items. The large main area had multiple large filing cabinets
nearly entirely full of health records. There were also boxes of health records scattered throughout
the main area. There were two rooms attached to both sides of the main area that had numerous
boxes of health records intermingled with the garbage and amongst the boxes of miscellaneous
personal items and car parts. The room in the southeast portion of the building had several large
filing cabinets full of health records. None of the health records found in the Gary clinic were
secured or protected from unauthorized access in any way. Rather, they were accessible by anyone
who gained entry to the clinic.
The garage located on the property adjacent to the clinic was also searched by the OAG
with the consent and assistance of the Klopfer family. The garage housed multiple vehicles filled
with garbage, old car parts, and rodent carcasses, along with various boxes of debris and other
personal items. Several health records were found strewn about the garage.
With the consent of Dr. Klopfer’s family, said health records were removed from the Gary
clinic and garage by the OAG with the assistance of the Hobart Police Department, utilizing
significant man power and one twenty-six foot moving truck. The health records were then taken
to a secure access facility utilized by the State of Indiana for storage of records. The facility is not
accessible to the public.
4. THE HOBART STORAGE UNITS
With the assistance of the Hobart Police Department and the Klopfer family, the OAG also
located health records from Dr. Klopfer’s medical practice in the storage units he had rented in
Hobart. The records were intermingled with boxes of personal items, garbage, old furniture, and
car parts that filled most of the units. Many of the records were decades old. The health records
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were not secured inside the unit in any way. Anyone who gained access to the inside of the storage
unit would have been able to access the health records being stored there.
With the consent and cooperation of Dr. Klopfer’s family, all health records found were
removed from the storage units in Hobart by the OAG with the assistance of the Hobart Police
Department utilizing significant man power over the course of two days and two twenty-six foot
moving trucks. The records were then taken to a secure access facility utilized by the State of
Indiana for storage of records. The facility is not accessible to the public.
C. THE FAMILY HOME
In the months following the initial discovery of the fetal remains, the Klopfer family
undertook the arduous task of going through Dr. Klopfer’s personal property located inside the
family home. In doing so they found countless health records and other records containing
personal health information. Upon this discovery the Klopfer family contacted the OAG to notify
them of these abandoned health records and arranged for the OAG to take possession. All health
records were then removed from the home by the OAG with the family’s permission and
assistance. Those records were then safely transported to a secure access facility utilized by the
State of Indiana for storage of records. The facility is not accessible to the public.
D. THE DETERMINATION OF ABANDONMENT
In order to determine if the records from Dr. Klopfer’s medical practice were abandoned
under Indiana law, the OAG reviewed the information at its disposal from its own internal efforts
as well the information provided by Will County, Illinois, authorities. On September 18, 2019, as
a result of its investigation, the OAG made a Determination of Abandonment as to the health
records from Dr. Klopfer’s medical practice in the State of Indiana. The Determination of
Abandonment found that (1) as Dr. Klopfer was a licensed Doctor of Osteopathy and subject to
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the governance of the Medical Licensing Board of Indiana, he was a “health care provider” as
defined by Indiana Code § 4-6-14-2; (2) the health records relating to Dr. Klopfer’s medical
practice in the State of Indiana constituted “health records” as defined by the Abandoned Records
Statute, Indiana Code § 4-6-14, et seq., and the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability
Act of 1996, as amended by the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
(“HITECH”) Act, 42 U.S.C. § 1302(a), and the Department of Health and Human Services
Regulations, 45 C.F.R. § 160 et seq. (collectively, “HIPAA”), specifically §§ 45 C.F.R. § 160.103,
45 CFR § 164.304, 45 CFR § 164.310, and 45 CFR §164.514; and (3) that the subject health
records had been recklessly or negligently treated by Dr. Klopfer in the manner in which they had
been kept, such that an unauthorized person could obtain access or possession.
The Determination of Abandonment therefore found that the records related to Dr.
Klopfer’s medical practice had been abandoned pursuant to Indiana law and that the OAG could
thereby exercise its power to take possession of, store, maintain, transfer, protect, or destroy said
records subject to applicable state and federal law. It is of note that prior to the Determination of
Abandonment, Mrs. Sherry Klopfer, as Dr. Klopfer’s next of kin, legal and personal representative,
gave her consent to the Indiana Office of the Attorney General taking possession of the health
records from Dr. Klopfer’s medical practice in Indiana. In fact, Dr. Klopfer’s family offered its
full cooperation and support throughout the OAG investigation. Following the Determination of
Abandonment, and through the collaboration of the Klopfer family, multiple state law enforcement
agencies, state prosecutor’s offices, and the OAG, the properties located in Indiana either
belonging to or rented by Dr. Klopfer were located and searched for additional fetal remains and
health records.
On October 1, 2019, the OAG issued a Notice of Determination of Abandonment to Mrs.

19

Sherry Klopfer regarding the health records from the former medical practice of Dr. Klopfer,
stating that the records had been deemed abandoned pursuant to Indiana Code § 4-6-14-5 and that
the OAG would be exercising its powers under Indiana Code § 4-6-14-8. See Exhibit G attached
hereto. The Notice of Determination of Abandonment also informed Mrs. Klopfer of her right as
Dr. Klopfer’s legal and personal representative to petition for review of the Determination. The
time to petition for review expired on October 19, 2019. To date, no objections, challenges, or
requests for review of the determination have been received by the OAG.

As such, this

determination is final.
E. SECOND DISCOVERY OF FETAL REMAINS
On the morning of October 9, 2019, members of the Will County Sheriff’s Office
discovered additional fetal remains associated with the Dr. Ulrich Klopfer investigation.
Detectives with the Will County Sheriff’s Office conducted a search of numerous vehicles owned
by Dr. Klopfer in Dolton, Illinois. The search conducted was done with the assistance and
cooperation of the Klopfer family. In one vehicle’s trunk compartment, a late 1990’s Mercedes
Benz, there were five plastic bags and one box that contained 165 medically preserved fetal
remains intermingled with bits of garbage and rodent droppings.
The additional remains recovered from Dr. Klopfer’s vehicle were preserved, packaged,
and marked similarly to the previous fetal remains discovered at the Klopfer family property in
September 2019. Health records were also found with the additional remains that were nearly
identical in form and content to those found with the initial fetal remains in Dr. Klopfer’s garage.
All of the health records and information observed by Will County detectives and crime
scene investigators in their investigation of the additional 165 fetal remains coincided with the
previously known information that the fetal remains were from the time period of 2000-2003,
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when Dr. Klopfer was only performing abortions in the State of Indiana. As such, on October 21,
2019, the additional 165 remains were transferred from Will County, Illinois, to the custody of the
St. Joseph County Coroner’s Office in Indiana pursuant to an arrangement with the OAG, bringing
the total number of fetal remains to 2,411.
F. A SUMMARY OF THE ABANDONED HEALTH RECORDS
The OAG reviewed, processed, and indexed all abandoned health records that accompanied
the fetal remains. There were more records than fetal remains found. A total of 2,460 health
records that accompanied the fetal remains were legible and able to be processed. It was not
possible to match these records to a corresponding fetal remain due to the manner in which they
were kept, the condition of both the records and the fetal remains, and the unreliability of the
information contained therein. 622 of the records listed procedure dates in 2000. 861 of the records
listed procedure dates in 2001. 823 of the records listed procedure dates in 2002 and 137 records
listed a procedure date in 2003. 17 of the records either listed the patient’s date of birth as the
procedure date, had an illegible procedure date, or no procedure date at all. Therefore, it is
presumed that all of the fetal remains were from abortion procedures that took place between 2000
and 2003.
There was no location information provided on any of the records. However, it is known
that Dr. Klopfer was only practicing in the State of Indiana at that time at one of his three clinic
locations. As such, it is presumed that all of the fetal remains originated from abortion procedures
that took place at one of Dr. Klopfer’s three Indiana clinic locations: Fort Wayne, South Bend, or
Gary.
From the personal health information displayed on the records which accompanied the fetal
remains the OAG was able to determine that 181 of the records belonged to patients under the age
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of 18 at the time of the abortion procedure, the youngest of which being 11 years of age. These
records were referred to the Indiana Department of Child Services for further review.
The OAG also reviewed, processed, and indexed the abandoned health records collected
from the clinic locations, storage locations, and Klopfer family home that had a last patient contact
within the proscribed retention period. These health records totaled 35,888 individual patient
records.
From the personal health information displayed on the records the OAG was able to
determine that 2,625 of the records belonged to patients under the age of 18 at the time of the
abortion procedure, the youngest of which being 10 years of age. Information obtained by the
OAG from these records pertaining to suspected or potential child abuse and neglect was referred
to the Indiana Department of Child Services on December 17, 2020.
In addition, patient records were also identified where it appeared that Dr. Klopfer
performed an abortion procedure despite the fact that the patient was over 27 weeks pregnant.
Information obtained by the OAG related to these procedures was referred to the Indiana State
Police on December 18, 2020.
Abandoned health records from Dr. Klopfer’s medical practice that were outside the
proscribed retention period were processed, recorded, and then disposed of in a confidential
manner. These records filled 552 boxes comprised of over 84,000 patient records. These records
were dated between 1977 and 2012. These records were maintained in a secure facility while
being processed and recorded. These records were disposed of in a confidential manner pursuant
to state law.
V. FINAL DISPOSITION OF THE FETAL REMAINS
The St. Joseph County Coroner’s Office was unable to make an independent verification
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of the identities of the individual fetal remains. See Exhibit H attached hereto. Under Indiana
Code § 16-34-3-4(a), an aborted fetus must be interred or cremated. Pursuant to Indiana Code §
16-41-16-7.6, a person or facility possessing an aborted fetus:
(b) within ten (10) business days after a miscarriage occurs or an abortion is
performed, a person or facility described in subsection (a) shall:
(1) conduct the final disposition of a miscarried fetus or an aborted fetus in
the manner required by IC 16-21-11-6 or IC 16-34-3-4; or
(2) ensure that the miscarried fetus or aborted fetus is preserved until final
disposition under IC 16-21-11-6 or IC 16-34-3-4 occurs.
In order to effectuate the burial or cremation of an aborted fetus, the “local health officer
shall issue a permit for the disposition of the aborted fetus to the person in charge of the internment
of the aborted fetus”. Indiana Code § 16-34-3-4(b).
Accordingly, on February 12, 2020, all 2,411 fetal remains were interred at Southlawn
Cemetery in South Bend, Indiana. Attorney General Curtis Hill spoke at the non-denominational
burial service for the fetal remains noting that the OAG had “identified a burial site with the
purpose to memorialize the unborn, keeping them together in rest, each of them connected by their
common fate… Each of these was a life — a life that was terminated — and each deserves to be
secure in a final resting place, with dignity and respect, as should be afforded all human beings.
May each of the 2,411 buried here, now and forever, rest in peace.” The interment of the fetal
remains at Southlawn Cemetery effectuated a proper and legal disposition of the remains.
VI. SENATE BILL 299
It is of note that in the wake of this tragedy there was positive reform. In January of 2020
Senator Liz Brown presented Senate Bill 299 which proposed to amend and supplement existing
state law surrounding the disposition of fetal remains. Specifically, Senate Bill 299 requires “the
state department of health (state department) to develop forms that provide: (1) that a pregnant
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woman has a right after a surgical abortion to dispose of the remains by interment or cremation or
have the provider dispose of the remains; and (2) that, after an abortion induced by an abortion
inducing drug, the pregnant woman will expel an aborted fetus and set forth the disposition policy
of the health care facility or abortion clinic concerning the disposition of the aborted fetus,
including allowing a pregnant woman to return an aborted fetus to the health care facility or
abortion

clinic

for

disposition

by

interment

or

cremation”.

See

https://legiscan.com/IN/bill/SB0299/2020. The Bill also sought to amend current state laws by
stating “that a pregnant woman who has an abortion has the right to have the health care facility
or abortion clinic dispose of the aborted fetus by cremation or interment and to ask the health care
facility or abortion clinic the method of disposition used.” Id. Senate Bill 299 also requires “the
pregnant woman to inform the health care facility or abortion clinic of the pregnant woman's
decision for disposition or, in the case of an abortion induced by an abortion inducing drug,
whether the pregnant woman will return the aborted fetus to the health care facility or abortion
clinic for disposition” and requires “the health care facility or abortion clinic to dispose of the
returned fetus by cremation or interment.” Id. Finally, Senate Bill 299 requires “that a burial
transit permit that includes multiple aborted fetal remains be accompanied by a log prescribed by
the state department containing certain information, except in certain circumstances, about each
fetus included under the burial transit permit.” Id.
The OAG provided testimony to both the House and Senate as to its investigation of Dr.
Klopfer and the fetal remains he left degrading in his garage and the trunks of his cars. The OAG
supported Senate Bill 299 and the need for the proposed legislative reform to assure the dignified
treatment of fetal remains in the State of Indiana. Senate Bill 299 passed and was signed into law
by the Governor on March 18, 2020. The new requirements amended Indiana Code § 16-34-2-
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1.1, Indiana Code § 16-34-3-2, and Indiana Code §16-34-3-4. The amendments took effect on
July 1, 2020.
VII. MAINTENANCE AND FINAL DISPOSITION OF THE HEALTH RECORDS
Indiana law establishes procedures for the OAG to obtain and secure abandoned health
records or other records with personal identifying information to protect those named in the files
from becoming victims of identity theft or having their personal information exposed. Once
abandoned records are obtained by the OAG, they are maintained in a secure access facility that is
not accessible to the public. The records are maintained for the period of time mandated by state
law, and the length of time they are maintained depends on the record type and age.
For example, while abandoned records obtained by the OAG are to be kept for a minimum
of three years after the date the records are secured under Indiana Code § 4-6-14-8, original health
records or microfilms of the records are to be maintained for at least seven years from the time
they are created under Indiana Code § 16-39-7-1, x-ray film is to be maintained for at least five
years under Indiana Code § 16-39-7-2, and other records that are not health records but contain
personal information are to be maintained for three years after the date the records are seized or
secured pursuant to Indiana Code § 4-6-14-9.
Health records that fell within the required retention period have been reviewed, processed,
and indexed. They will be maintained for the time periods prescribed by law in a secure facility
until they can be properly disposed of to maintain patient confidentiality. Records outside of the
required retention period were processed, logged, then properly disposed of to maintain patient
confidentiality. Because the health records and/or other records containing personal identifying
information found at Dr. Klopfer’s home, clinics, and storage locations in Fort Wayne, Gary, and
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South Bend have been deemed abandoned records pursuant to state law, some individuals may
wish to determine if their records may be included.
A notice related to these health records has been added to the Abandoned Records page of
the OAG website. That page can be accessed at: https://www.in.gov/attorneygeneral/2808.htm.
The OAG has completed an index of the recovered records required to be maintained by law. As
discussed above, the OAG recovered 35,888 health records required by law to be retained. These
records include patients seen by Dr. Klopfer at all three clinic locations over the past seven years.
These records will be maintained confidentially by the OAG until 2024. Upon the expiration of
the required retention date the OAG will have the records properly destroyed in a confidential
manner.
If an individual was a patient of Dr. Klopfer’s and has reason to believe their records may
be part of those recovered, said individual may file a written request to retrieve the record(s) and/or
obtain copies by filling out an Abandoned Records Request Form. The form can be requested by
calling the OAG at 1-800-382-5516 or downloaded at the following web address:
https://www.in.gov/attorneygeneral/files/Abandoned%20Records%20Request%20Form.pdf.
VIII. CONCLUSION
The fetal remains have been interred in a respectful and dignified manner. The interment
of the fetal remains was effectuated in accordance with Indiana law. The OAG has and will
continue to maintain the safety and security of the health and other records containing personal
information from Dr. Klopfer’s medical practice until such a time as they can be properly disposed
of in accordance with state law.
The OAG created a phone number and email address for the specific use of anyone who
may wish to inquire further about this investigation. The email address is questions@atg.in.gov,
and the phone number is (317) 234-6663.
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I U ,

STATE OF INDIANA

LAKE SUPERIOR COURT
COUNTY DIVISION

.i'

COUNTY OF LAKE

GRfimEfilNT, llslQIiiNg

JA.V d8 2011

STATE OF INDIANA

CAUSE:

V.

CLEtJkLAX': '

Ulrlch Georg Klopfer

INFORMATION

Affiant, Lieutenant J. Qruszka #415
09/28/2012

in

the

Dr. Ulrlch Georg Klopfer

County

upon
of

Lake,

did

oath,

says that on or about

State of

Indiana,

knowingly

or

the

accused,

intentionally

fail to submit the Terminated Pregnancy Report for an abortion performed on a female who is less
than fourteen (14) yearsofage to the Indiana State Department ofHealth andthe Department of
Child Serviceswithin three (3) days afterthe abortion is performed

contrary to I.e. i6-34-2-5(b)

.. and against the peace and dignity ofthe State of

Indiana.

Iswear, under the penalty for perjury as specified by I.C. 35-44-2-Jk^t(!3BLfbregoing is
true to the best of my information and belief,
rv-iJv
v/'
AFFIAN

20

Subscribed and sworn to before me and approved for prosecution on

BERNARD A. CARTER
PROSECUTING AHORNEY

^j

D

DEPUTY PROSECUTING ATTORNEY

WITNESSES;

Lynne Scherschell, Robin Tharpe, Indiana State Health Department Keeper of Records

EXHIBIT A

EXHIBIT A

DATB;_fli

INTHESUPERIOR COURT OPLAKE COUNTY, 01V.I
STATE OF INDIANA

CAUSENO:

4$PO7-l*<0h (M^ 1/
49D07-.

vs.

43007-

PLEA AGREEMENT

DEISNDANT, HAWN^EEN CHAROJBD WTHTHE FOLLOWWO
)WINOOFFENSB(S):

iLftAO-JaJ;

4

PLEADS GUILTY TOTHEFOLLOWING OFFENSE(S) ASCHARGED ORAMENDED!
1.
2.

4.
5.
6.

3

AND THE STATE NOW MOVES TO DISMISS THE FOLLOWING CHARGESi

1.
2.

4.
5.

3.

6.

bOUNT(S) J_POR_iy_Days (ReviowDHle^.(^'|

. CONDITIONAL DISCHARGE/

X

TO BE MONITOREDimW^RETRIAL DIVERSION PROGRAM: the DefendEiit AgrtsS to"Comniit No

Othar Offsmes: Dafeiwlunt Walvw Any Criminal R\ile 4C Objection; Defendant to pay POP User Fee of$_j!20__md
Court Costa ofS IVO
SENTENCE RECOMMENDATION A$ FOXJLO'tVS;
CHAROEllfl

CHARGE 02

$

Fhw[

$

S.

Court Coats

SuspendedJ

^

Fine [$_Suspended]

Court Costs [$ a

^Days-Lake County Jail
.Days Suspended

.Days-Lake County Jail
.Days Suspended

. $200 Counter-measure Fee

.S200 Counte^mea8ure Fee

THE POlXOmm ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS ARE IMPOSED: [Xapplicable provision®]
ProbfltlenferaTcnnot

Monlhs; Inibrroal

,Cominunily Service fi*

ftmnal

D«ys/Hoais

. Alcohol/Dnig Abuse couiueling at COURT APPROVED
. Drivers Lioende wspeiiKon lenninsted
. Ucettse Suspcnoion for
Monlha/Yeftrs
. 180DayAdmlnJaliatlve Lfceitfe SuapeflSiOit

Restricted License fi)f

.tennlnited

E)aya

Bond Ordered Released

(Mondily) _ CMP

jUL 14?")^

DAPIC ^

Reatilutton
Safe School Fee

LAPPS

^LADOS toMonitor.

Court Co8»

PAF

PUP

Prob.Pce3

Attoimy

.Defendant hmnobond. Probation tosetuppayment plan forProbation Fee$ ONLY.
60
90d^s te pay CMP/DAPIOSafe School andC/C
LADOS to«Ct ap payment pitm
Probationto set up payment plan

, Reflisal Suspension tennlnated baaed onpsitiea stipulation tiiBl Detfendant didnotlenowlngly lefiise tosubmit totest
. Reatimiion mtfaeAmounlofS
to
. No Contaot/Adveise Conlaot with Victim
.Defendant Ordered RoIeaKdConthiacliBrwoidy)

,

•

.OlherConditions Imposed by the Court

1

MuVld

I, the DelUant i:

IS of the Plea

t

I have read diis

docummtattd

Defendant^ ^

I

Defense Aterney

Deputy Prosecmhig^ttorney Lindsey Mi Field

EXHIBIT B

STATE OF INDIANA

)

IN THE ST. JOSEPH SUPERIOR COURT

)SS:
ST. JOSEPH COUNTY

)

STATE OF INDIANA

CAUSE NO.

) FAILURE TO TIMELY FILE A PUBLIC REPORT,
CLASS B MISDEMEANOR

)
VS.

)

ULRICH G. KLOPFER

DOB:

1940

-filedJUN 3 0 2014
St. Joseph Supefffr

MICHAEL A. DVORAK, upon Information and belief, affirms under the penalty of
perjury that:

On or between January 25, 2013 and January 28, 2013 inclusive, ULRICH G.
KLOPFER, a physician, did knowingly fail to complete a form, entitled "Terminated
Pregnancy Report," supplied by the Indiana State Department of Health, and transmit

that form to the Indiana State Department of Health and the Indiana Department of
Child Services within 3 days after Dr. Klopfer performed an abortion in St. Joseph
County, Indiana, on January 25, 2013, upon A.P., a female who was less than fourteen
(14) years of age.

All of which is contrary to the form of the statute made and provided, to wit:
Indiana Code 16-34-2-5(b) and Indiana Code 16-34-2-5(d), and against the peace and
dignity of the State of Indiana.

EXHIBIT C

EXHIBIT C

EXHIBIT C

EXHIBIT C

11/28/2014 12:38 FAX

574 272 1289

1^.26. 2014 4:32PM

ffomens PaTllllon

@0003/0003

personnel partners

No. 4178

STATE OF INDIANA

IN THE ST. JOSEPH SUPERIORCOURT

ST. JOSEPH COUNTY

traffic &MISDEMEANOR DIVISION

STATEOF Q^IAKA

CAUSE NO. 71D(M*1406-CM-0024$9

VS.

PRBHUAL DIVERSIONACSREEMENT

P. 3

ULRICHKLOPFBR

dtuit^ saldcharj^s)oaiiis 1"dqrofDeconber, 2015. IF.ANDONLnP.Dsftndaot
ooa^^cadiaiideveiytaniafllieagiiBament Asasiied&«oiiditioii.itisllw
wyw^^thepefendag
saamlKi

n. the DEFENDANT AGREES TO:

S330.00. P89miilisdueinibl11^thel''d^ofMttdi»20l5.
^ ^'^ttffi»^^>Jsden»aaerCBUiliII2S.Laflw«te8tiwt2®'Roor

QwSttvrew 8t I•88&^.^8 t<»n iwj«4 ^

w"<iiltoe at

TheWtoattonc«!e!brGPSbS^^™^^

B. Notcommit ANY criminaloifenseduriM the term oftbia airwam^
C.

^wpeifiwmcd onorbefiaethe 1"toof

2015.

"*

*-wweeevmewse •MM0% W

^

"SofT
€0*

j^w^^^W.J8flfti$oiiBtvil*«10^PIoor»SoufliB«nd>IN. 46601, Attiu: PmTrlal DiveisiOQ
D. R^pmtto the StJoseph County Ptoseotttor's Office as may be doeotedst
all^atifmsiathis case. This m&iziatlonwi]! notbe used againstyon Ifdns cause is

EXHIBIT D

EXHIBIT D

EXHIBIT E

EXHIBIT E

EXHIBIT E

EXHIBIT E

EXHIBIT E

EXHIBIT E

EXHIBIT E

EXHIBIT E

EXHIBIT E

EXHIBIT E

EXHIBIT E

EXHIBIT E

THE MEDICAL UCENSING BOARD OF INDIANA
CAUSE NO. 2014 MLB 0044

IN THE MATTER OF THE

NOV 2 2 2016

LICENSE OF ULRICH G. KLOPFER, D.O.

Indiana Professional
Licensing Agency

LICENSE NO. 02000628A

FINDINGS OF FACT. ULTIMATE FINDINGS OF FACT. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW.
AND FINAL ORDER

The MedicalLicensingBoard of Indiana ("Board") held a hearing on August 25,2016, in
Room W064 ofthe Indiana Government Center South, 302 West Washington Street,

Indianapolis, Indiana, concerning an amended administrativecomplaintfiled against the medical
license of Ulrich G. Klopfer, D.O., ("Respondent") on January 11,2016.

The State ofIndiana ("Petitioner") was represented by counsel, Deputy Attorneys
General,N. Renee Gallagher,Amelia A. Hilliker, and Kelly C. Haltom. Respondent appeared in
person and was represented by counsel, Mary Watts and Joshua Burress. The Board, after
considering the evidence and taking ofiBicial notice of its file in this case, issues the following
Findings of Fact, Ultimate Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Final Order.
FINDINGS OF FACT

1.

Respondent's address on file with the Medical Licensing Board ofIndiana is 2010

Ironwood Circle, South Bend, Indiana 46635. Respondent is a licensed Doctor of Osteopathy,
holding Indiana license number 02000628A, issued January 12,1979.
2.

Respondent last worked as a physician on November 6, 2015. Respondent last

completed Continuing Medical Education Hours in either 2008 or 2010.
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EXHIBIT F

EXHIBIT F

EXHIBIT F

EXHIBIT F

EXHIBIT F

EXHIBIT F

EXHIBIT F

EXHIBIT F

EXHIBIT F

EXHIBIT F

State of Indiana

Office of the Attorney General
302 WestAVashington Street, IGCS 5tw Floor
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

CuiiTis T. Hjll, Jr.
Ati'ORNEY General

October 1, 2019

Sherry L. Klopfer

Re:

Abandoned Records
File No. 19-10291

Dear Mrs. Klopfer,

As you are aware, the Office of the Indiana Attorney General ("OAG") conducted an
investigation regarding potentially abandoned health records from the former
medical practice of the late Dr. Ulrich G. Klopfer ("Dr. Klopfer") at the following
locations:

2010 E. Ironwooa Uu'cle, boutn JtJend, Indiana
2210 Inwood Drive, Ft. Wayne, Indiana
3711 Washington Street, Gary, Indiana

3712-3714 Broadway, Gary, Indiana
4001 West 37'^^ Avenue, Hobart, Indiana

The investigation revealed that Dr. Klopfer was responsible for maintaining and/or
storing health records at these locations and that Dr. Klopfer is now deceased. Given
the death of Dr. Klopfer, Dr. Klopfer has no use for or access to the records and has
thereby relinquished his rights and control to them.
At the conclusion of the investigation, the OAG determined that the records were
abandoned pursuant to Ind. Code § 4-6-14-6. Under Ind. Code § 4-6-14-5, the OAG
has the power to take possession of, store, maintain, transfer, protect, or destroy
abandoned health records, subject to certain time Kmitations under Ind. Code § 4-614-8.
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Telephone (317) 232-6201 - F/\x (317) 232-7979

EXHIBIT G

EXHIBIT G

AFFIDAVIT OF MICHAEL J. MCGANN

I, Michael J. McGann, affirm and state as follows:

1.

That I am more than eighteen (18) years of age.

2.

I am the duly elected Coroner for St. Joseph Coxinty, Indiana, and am currently

serving in that capacity in St. Joseph County.

3.

I am competentto testify to the facts set forth herein.

4.

The facts set forth herem are based upon my personal knowledge.

5.

Part of my duties as coroner for St. Joseph County include providing independent

verification ofthe identity of human remains.

6.

On October2,2019,1 received custody of more than 2,000 sets of fetal remains

transported to St. Joseph County, Indiana from Joliet, Illinois, pursuant to an arrangement

betweenthe IndianaAttomey General and Will County (Illinois) attorney. The remains had
been recovered from a garage near the residence of Dr. Ukich Klopfer.
7.

On October 21,2019,1 received custody of a second set of fetal remains

transported to St. Joseph County, Indiana from Joliet, Illinois, pursuant to an arrangement

between the Indiana Attomey General and Will County (Illinois) attomey. The remains had
been recovered from a vehicle belonging to Dr. Klopfer located in Dolton, Illinois.

8.

I have reviewedthe remains and the records producedalong with the remains.

9

Based on the state of the remains, and the records provided to me, I am unable to

make an independentverification of the identity of the thousands of remains deliveredto me
from Will County and currently in my custody and possession.

I affirm underthe penalties of peijurythat the above and foregoing is true and accurate.
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